Policy Committee

THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR ERIE COUNTY

April 4, 2024
At 9:00 a.m.

ECIDA Offices
95 Perry Street, 4™ Floor Conference Room
Buffalo, New York 14203

Call Meeting to Order
Approval of the March 7, 2024 Policy Committee Meeting Minutes (Pages 2-5)
Project Matrix (Page 6)

Compliance Matters:
a) 467 Richmond Avenue LLC/REVPAC — Update (Pages 7-39)

Adaptive Reuse Discussion
a) Housing Background Discussion

Adjournment - Next Meeting May 2, 2024 at 9:00 a.m.



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE
ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

DATE AND PLACE: March 7, 2024 the Erie County Industrial Development Agency,
95 Perry Street, 4™ Floor Conference Room, Buffalo, New York 14203

PRESENT: Denise Abbott, Rev. Mark Blue, Zachary Evans, Brenda W. McDuffie,
Dr. Susan McCartney, Hon. Glenn Nellis, Laura Smith, David J. State,
Lavon Stephens and Paul Vukelic

EXCUSED: A.J. Baynes, Hon. April Baskin, Hon. Byron W. Brown, Richard
Lipsitz and Hon. Jo}m Tobia

OTHERS PRESENT: John Cappellino, President & CEQ; Beth O’Keefe, Vice President of
Operations; Mollie Profic, Chief Financial Officer; Grant Lesswing,
Director of Business Development; Brian Krygier, Director of
Information Technology; Carrie Hocieniec, Operations Assistant/
Assistant Secretary; Robbie Ann McPherson, Director of Marketing &
Communications; Soma Hawramee, Compliance Portfolio Manager;
Michelle Moore, Compliance Associate; Andrew Pawenski,
Esq./Harris Beach PLLC and Robert G. Murray, Esq., General
Counsel/Harris Beach PLLC]

GUESTS: Paul Lavoie on behalf of SL Evans and Enrico D’Abate & Eric
Eckman on behalf of 1016 East Delvan, LLC

There being a quorum present at 9:06 a.m., the Meeting of the Policy Committee was
called to order by Chair McDuffie.

MINUTES

The minutes of the February 1, 2024 Policy Committee meeting were presented. Upon
motion made by Ms. Abbott to approve of the minutes noting the correction, and seconded by
Mr. Nellis, the Policy Committee meeting minutes were unanimously approved.

PROJECT PRESENTATION

~

SL. Evans, 7612 & 7690 Southwestern Blvd., Evans. New York 14057. Ms. O’Keefe
presented this proposed sales and use tax and real property tax abatement benefits project
consisting of the ground mounted installation of 2 solar arrays producing a combined 8.25 MW
of AC power that will be located on approximately 33 acres of undeveloped land. Ms. O’Keefe
confirmed that SL Evans is seeking approximately $4,238,477 in assistance including sales and
use tax exemption and real property tax abatement benefits. The cost benefit is 4:1 so for every
$1 of incentives the community benefit is $4 in payroll & tax revenue. For Erie County, every $1
of incentives provides $4 in community benefits.

Page 1 of 4

-2-



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

At this point in time, Mr. Evans joined the meeting.

General discussion ensued.

Mr. Cappellino explained the company could have applied for the New York State
Section 487 real property tax exemption benefit, which can provide up to a 100% abatement
from real property taxes, but has opted to utilize the ECIDA PILOT real property tax abatement.

Ms. McCartney spoke in favor of the project, and inquired as to how many homes could
be powered by the project. Mr. Lavoie spoke on behalf of the company and stated that enough
energy could be generated to supply about 1,000 homes.

Ms. O’Keefe stated that in exchange for providing the sales and use tax and real property
tax abatement benefits, the approval of this project will be conditioned upon adherence to certain
material terms and conditions with respect to the potential modification, recapture and/or

termination of financial assistance as follows:

Draft Recapture Material Terms

Condition Term Recapture Provision

Investment amount equal to or greater than 85%
of project amount.

Total Project Amount = $20,769,000

Total Investment | At project completion 85% =$17,653,650

Coincides with 20-Year | No employment to be created as part of this

Employment PILOT project
Adherence to policy including quarterly

Local Labor Construction Period reporting

Coincides with 20-Year
Pay Equity PILOT Adherence to policy

Coincides with 20-Year
Unpaid Tax PILOT Adherence to policy

Coincides with 20-Year | Recapture of state and local sales taxes and real
Recapture Period | PILOT property tax

Page 2 of 4

-3-



~ Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

Mr. Vukelic moved and Ms. McCartney seconded to recommend the project as proposed
be forwarded to the members of the ECIDA for approval. Ms. McDulffie called for the vote and
the project was then unanimously recommended to be forwarded to the Board for approval.

At this point in time, Mr. Blue joined the meeting.

Amendatory Inducement Resolution - 1016 East Delavan. LLC (BPS Commissary
Kitchen). 1016-1044 East Delavan Avenue, Buffalo, New York 14215. Ms. O’Keefe presented
this proposed sales tax and mortgage recording tax benefits project involving the construction of
a 67,000 sq. ft. single story commissary kitchen for the sole use of the Buffalo Public Schools
(BPS) to prepare and distribute school meals to all schools in the district. Ms. O’Keefe noted
this project was originally approved on July 26, 2023, and confirmed that since the original
approval, the Company has eliminated its request for a PILOT benefit, and has increased its
request with respect to the sales tax benefit amount and the mortgage recording tax benefit

amount.

Ms. O’Keef explained that the existing facility could not meet the needs of the new
programming requirements of the student meal plan created by the BPS. As part of this initiative,
the facility will cook onsite, using locally grown products, creating fresh and high-quality meal
options for students. The new building will include office space for administration and a test
kitchen that will serve as a conference room/community space available for local community
meetings and training for food service employees. The BPS needed a facility that can function at
a higher level, promoting healthier meals for students and promoting a safe environment for its

staff.

Ms. O’Keefe confirmed that 1016 East Delavan, LLC is seeking $1,479,997 in incentives
including sales tax and mortgage recording tax exemption benefits. The Projected Community
Benefit includes a total payroll for the direct and indirect jobs created including 156 construction
jobs over the project period of more than $31.4M. The resulting cost benefit is 22:1 so for every
$1 of incentives the community benefit is $22 in payroll & tax revenue. For Erie County, every
$1 of incentives provides $22 in community benefits.

Ms. O’Keefe stated that in exchange for providing the sales and use tax and mortgage
recording tax benefits, the approval of this project will be conditioned upon adherence to certain
material terms and conditions with respect to the potential modification, recapture and/or

termination of financial assistance as follows:

Draft Recapture Material Terms

Condition Term Recapture Provision

‘ Investment amount equal to or greater than 85%
of project amount.
Total Project Amount = $34,135,084

Total Investment | At project completion 85% = $29,014,821

Page 3 of 4

-4-



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

Maintain Base = 16 FT, 35 PT (33 FTE)
Create 85% of Projected
Projected = 15 PT
Coincides with 85%=12PT (6 FTE)
Employment recapture period Recapture Employment = 39 FTE
Adherence to policy including quarterly
Local Labor Construction Period reporting
Coincides with
Pay Equity recapture period Adherence to policy
Coincides with
Unpaid Tax recapture period Adherence to policy
Coincides with Recapture of state and local sales taxes and
Recapture Period | recapture period mortgage recording tax

Ms. McDuffie spoke in favor of the project.
Mr. Eckman spoke on behalf of the applicant to further describe the project.
Mr. Blue moved and Mr. Evans seconded to recommend the project as proposed be

forwarded to the members of the ECIDA for approval. Ms. McDuffie called for the vote and the
project was then unanimously recommended to be forwarded to the Board for approval.

ADAPTIVE REUSE DISCUSSION

Housing Background. Mr. Cappellino outlined the potential goals of the Policy
Committee as it contemplates establishing a housing policy:

1. Modify/formalize an affordable housing component that is currently in practice

within the Adaptive Resue Policy (ADR).
2. Define specific affordable housing parameters within the adaptive reuse policy
3. Establish affordable housing compliance requirements.

Mr. Cappellino presented a power point describing the current ECIDA Adaptive Reuse
Policy and practices as well as concepts for establishing a percentage affordable housing set

aside, requiring rental rate limits based on AMI guidelines, required a certain size or number of
bedrooms, or person(s) in a unit and rental rate limits.

General discussion ensued.

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 10:15 a.m.

Dated: March 7, 2024

Elizabeth A. O’Keefe, Secretary

Page 4 of 4

-5.



uawadnpuj Alojepusiuy,
asnay sahdepy 3

| _foezJsvz ] L st T 6 T Je | ST 18301 €207 ]
AR _ I [ [ I [ i} | [ I [ | rmownsasnay smdepy |
sqor sqor Palea  pajeasy pauelsy paujetay unolwy 333foug
unowy dapuadug Janojiids  uopsuoy sqor 1d $qorid sqofid sqorid usunsanuj meauy BT 5|e30),
v LUY'BET'YS SIEBA 07 6L 06 [1] 0 0 0 0 059°€S9'LT$ 000°692'02$ suea3 suea31s|yz-re |1
40171 40 pouag Ploysaiyy %58
(443 L66'6LY'TS SIAZ +31ep 1149 asT 1d42T ST 0 119 91 TZ8'Y10'62S V8O'SETPES ojeyng ZUesSIWWO) Sda [pe-rew |1
uon3|dwod Pafosd MaN - %S8 Ploysaiyy %58
=TT = - E = ——— = - E
n e w1 P ! Ak :
ohey y i
aysusg sqor| Paleas) aq| pajeary aq| pauieiay| paujersy JuBWPRWO) Junowy y3fo.gd umoy /AD 3eqg
3803 unowy SA;U3L)| ws) jo 8ual| saaojids|sqorasuos| uonearn qor} oisqofid| oisqorid| sqorid| sqofi4 UBURSIAUL WINWIIA| S1uaWIsaAu) 33eALy afoid awep 13(o.d| feaosddy
¥20T - panoiddy saanuasuj xe




O _ &
\ [‘ﬁ
MEMORANDUM l ‘( I 2

Date: April 4, 2024

To: ECIDA Policy Committee

Re: 467 Richmond Avenue, LLC/Rosanna Elizabeth Visual & Performing Arts Campus
(“REVPAC”) - Project Update

Background

On June 28, 2017, amended November 28, 2018, the ECIDA Board approved a sales tax benefit in
the amount of $345,625 and mortgage recording tax exemption to 467 Richmond, LLC/REVPAC in
connection with the renovation and adaptive reuse of the property located at 467 Richmond Avenue
which is the former Richmond Methodist Episcopal Church.

REVPAC received its sales tax benefit from 11/28/2018 through 2/28/22. REVPAC utilized a total
of $102,986.64 in sales tax benefits in those four years. The mortgage recording tax exemption was
not utilized. REVPAC’s recapture period is in effect from 11/28/2018 through 2/28/24 (two years
after project completion).

As part of its material terms, REVPAC was required to retain 3 full-time equivalent employees. In
September 2018, the ECIDA Board approved a two-tiered retention goal of 90 or 95 percent
(depending on the number of employees a company has). Accordingly, REVPAC was required to
maintain at least 3 full-time employees. Additionally, REVPAC was required to create 1 full-time
equivalent position on or before 2/28/24.

In 2022, REVPAC submitted Quarter 1 &2 employment data, based on the average, REVPAC had 1
FTE employee. Accordingly, REVPAC was 66% below its employment retention requirements in
2022.

Moreover, the project paused in late 2020 due to external factors, including legal issues, appeals, and
the pandemic, resulting in delays. Staff was furloughed in 2021. Due to the impact of COVID-19,
REVPAC was denied an extension for their construction loan, prompting them to halt the project,
pending refinancing with a new lender.

Since September 2023, REVPAC is in the final stages with LISC for the refinance of the project.
REVPAC is through the substantial underwriting of the project with LISC. LISC has provided
preliminary credit approval and outlined terms as per the attached letter. LISC proposes a
Construction to Mini-Permanent Loan of up to $5,000,000, anticipated to convert to a $3,000,000
Mini-Permanent loan. The loan aims to bridge the Better Buffalo Fund Loan and/or Grant, with a
term of 120 months and an interest rate of 8.35% per annum. LISC requires commitments from all
funding sources, letters of interest from commercial tenants, and due diligence completion before
final approval. Pending approval by LISC's National Credit Committee and Board of Directors, the
attached letter serves as an indication of interest with outlined terms. REVPAC is awaiting one
additional Letter of Intent from an incoming tenant to advance towards the closing stage. The
anticipated timeline for closing is estimated to be between 4 to 8 weeks.

Lastly, Empire State Development has reaffirmed their commitment of $1.5M towards the project.
REVPAC is confirmed eligible for a NYS Real Property Tax Exemption for Residential-Commercial
Urban Exemption Program under the Real Property Tax Law 485-a.



ISC
NEW YORK

November 8, 2023

Rachel Heckl

Executive Director

467 Richmond Avenue, LLC
540 Massachusetts Avenue
Buffalo, NY 14213

Re: Rosanna Elizabeth Visual and Preforming Arts Campus (REVPAC)
Dear Ms. Heckl:

The New York office of Local Initiatives Support Corporation (“LISC”) is pleased to provide
this letter of interest regarding the Rosanna Elizabeth Visual and Preforming Arts Campus
(REVPAC) Development (the “Project™) located at 467 Richmond Avenue, Buffalo, NY 14222
(Section Block Lot: 100.29-6-1.1) (the “Property”).

LISC understands that the Project will involve the refinance of the existing mortgage and
completion of construction on the property located at 467 Richmond Avenue, Buffalo, NY
14222. 467 Richmond Avenue, LLC is a for-profit organization founded in 2014 to redevelop the
newly acquired Property. The Rosanna Elizabeth Visual and Preforming Arts Campus
(“REVPAC”) project is focused on the adaptive reuse of the former Richmond Methodist
Episcopal Church building and the completion of a three-story infill apartment building, which
will create nine units of affordable housing and an arts production space that will be a resource
for residents of West Buffalo. The completed structure will provide for affordable and modular
workspace to accommodate institutional and small business tenants. This will be a walkable and
transit-oriented housing and cultural/economic resource accessible to West Side neighborhoods
and beyond. The Project will be funded by several state and local funding sources including a
Loan and/or Grant from the Better Buffalo Fund to be funded upon completion of the Project
(the “BBF Loan and/or Grant™).

This will confirm LISC’s interest to provide financing in support of the Project, subject to the
following terms and conditions:

Borrower: 467 Richmond Avenue, LLC.
Loan Type: Construction to Mini-Permanent Loan.
Loan Amount: Up to $5,000,000 (anticipated to convert to a $3,000,000 Mini-

Permanent loan).



Use of Loan Proceeds:

Loan Term:

Origination Period:

Interest Rate:

Construction Period:

Mini-Perm Period:

Payment Schedule:

Closing Fee:

Legal Fee:

Other Costs:

Recourse:

To refinance the existing mortgage, complete construction and
bridge the BBF Loan and/or Grant.

120 Months (maximum 36-month construction period plus 84-
month mini-permanent loan).

Up to 35 Months. The Loan Amount will be disbursed in
accordance with LISC disbursement policies.

8.35% per annum (LISC’s fixed interest rates are reviewed
periodically and subject to change based on the risk profile of the
Loan and Loan term, so that the interest rate will be the applicable
rate in effect on the closing date of the loan).

The construction period shall terminate upon the earlier of 1)
completion of the anticipated construction and receipt of the BBF
Loan and/or Grant, or 2) Thirty-six (36) months following Loan
closing. The date at which the Construction Period terminates shall
be known as the Conversion Date.

The Mini-Perm period shall commence upon the Conversion Date
and terminate upon the tenth anniversary of the Loan closing.

During the Construction Period, interest only shall be payable
monthly. The projected interest expense during the Construction
Period shall be reserved by LISC from Loan proceeds. If the
interest reserve is exhausted, the Borrower shall pay interest on a
current basis through the Conversion Date.

Effective with the month following the Conversion Date, the
Borrower shall pay principal and interest payable in equal
consecutive monthly installments based on the outstanding
principal balance as of the Conversion Date and an amortization
schedule of ten (10) years. All outstanding principal and interest
will be due at the end of the loan term.

1.5% of loan amount payable at loan closing.

Borrower is responsible for paying LISC’s reasonable legal fees for
preparation of legal documents for, and negotiating and closing, this
financing; such legal fees shall be payable even if the subject

financing does not ultimately close.

Payment of other third-party costs, including third-party
appraisal that may be required as part of the financing.

Full recourse to Borrower.



Guaranty: Full payment guaranty by 467 Richmond Avenue, LLC and Rachel
Heckl.

Security: First priority lien on the Property.

Special Conditions: As a condition of providing the Construction Loan, Borrower shall

have secured commitments from all funding sources in addition to
the Loan, which shall be available as of the closing of the Loan, in
an amount necessary to undertake construction (currently
estimated to total $11,551,323), and such additional funding
sources as may be required to repay the Construction loan to the
Mini-Permanent loan amount of approximately $3,000,000.

No other funding sources, grants or otherwise shall affect LISC’s
security interest in the Project, or Borrower’s ability to satisfy the
terms and conditions of the Loan.

Borrower shall have secured negotiated Letters of Interest for all
commercial tenants with terms outlining rents and any investment
in the project to facilitate the construction and permanent
financing.

Please understand that this letter is an indication of LISC’s interest to provide a loan in
support of the Project but is not a commitment or an offer to provide financing for the Project.
This letter of interest is a summary of some but not all of the terms and conditions upon which
LISC would be willing to provide financing for the Project. The loan described above remains
subject to, among other things, final satisfaction of LISC’s underwriting standards and
guidelines, and final approval by LISC’s National Credit Committee and the Board of Directors,
as necessary.

This letter of interest has been prepared in reliance on information provided to date by
467 Richmond Avenue, LLC to LISC's staff and is based on certain assumptions that have been
made by LISC and before LISC has had opportunity to complete its due diligence of the Project
or to underwrite the proposed financing for the Project. Accordingly, as a condition to closing
and disbursing the loan described above, LISC will require, among other things, satisfactory
completion of its due diligence investigation of the Project and its underwriting of the proposed
financing, including satisfactory confirmation of the information and assumptions on which this
letter is based. The closing and disbursing of the loan also will be subject to satisfaction of
LISC’s standard closing and disbursement conditions for this type of loan and any special
conditions that may be required as part of LISC's final approval. Any changes in the
assumptions or information on which this letter is based may result in changes of the terms and
conditions of the loan or cause LISC to decline to provide the proposed financing.

-10-



LISC is pleased to have the opportunity to support the Project and looks forward to working with

you to provide financing for the Project.

Sincerely yours,

/Xmﬂ 7

Valerie White
Senior Executive Director
LISCNY

Cc:  Christine R O’Connell, Director Community Development Investments LISC NY
Arturo Suarez, Senior Director Community Capital Investments LISC NY

-11-



BYRON W. BROWN JASON-C. SHELL, MPA

Mayor of Buffalo Commissioner
DEPARTMENT OF ASSESSMENT & TAXATION
Rosanna Elizabeth Corey Heckl Foundation January 12, 2024
For the Arts, Inc.
540 Massachusetts Ave. RE:467 Richmond
Buffalo, NY 14213 SBL#100.29-6-1.1

Dear Rachel A. Heckl,

The purpose of this letter is to confirm that the proposed mix use redevelopment
of the above referenced property may be eligible for a NYS Real Property Tax
Exemption for Residential-Commercial Urban Exemption Program under Real Property
Tax Law 485-a. As you are aware this exemption would take effect once the project is
complete and the assessor increases the assessment to reflect the improvements. This
increase in assessment would be exempt from city taxes according to the following

schedule:
Year Exemption Percentage
1-8 100
9 80
10 60
11 40
12 20

The exemption does not apply to sewer tax or to Erie County taxes. Keep in mind
that it is the increase in value that will be exempt from taxes. Assuming the project will
be complete by December 1, 2024 and you have met all of the criteria and conditions for
this exemption, and provided us with the Certificate of Occupancies, the exemption
would begin with the July 2025 City of Buffalo tax bill. An application for the
exemption was filed with us on June 20, 2016.

If you have any questions regarding this exemption, or if you need additional

information, please call me at (716) 851-5748.

Sincerely,
Qe A (. P20 Calies

Judith A. McCabe
Assessor

cc: Jason C. Shell, Commissioner

Moses Robinson, Principal Assessor

65 NJAGARA SQUARE, ROOM 101 < BUFFALO, NY 14202 + 716 851 5733 + (FAX) 716 851 5730 - BUFFALONY.GOV

-12-




August 8, 2023

RE: Extension of ECIDA Tax Abatement for 467 Richmond Ave LLC Project “Rosanna
Elizabeth Performing Arts Center and Campus”

Dear ECIDA Policy Committee and Board Members,

| appreciate the opportunity to provide the status of the 467 Richmond Ave, LLC (“Company”)
project that has previously received approval for ECIDA tax relief and to appeal for an extension
in the original abatement program for this worthy and important historic restoration and
redevelopment project. The project’s historic building is on the National Parks Service (‘NPS")
Registry of Historic Places.

As a brief background, between 2014-2016, the Company invested +/- $2MM to stabilize the
former Methodist church’s structural elements and building envelope. The fully mobilized
project construction of $10.7MM began in 2018 to renovate the former church into a commercial
space focused on artistic production and performance as well as erect a separate ‘3-story
apartment building with 8-rental units and a first floor commercial space. The Company sought
and received approvals from NPS and SHPO for the renovation plans.

In 2017, this project was one of the first to be approved under the City of Buffalo’s new Unified
Development Ordinance (“UDQ”), commonly referred to as the “Green Code”. Shortly after
receiving City pfanning, zoning and preservation approvals in 2017, the project was subject to
an Article 78 proceeding brought by one neighbor. It was a generic and meritless argument
meant only to stall and/or end the project. Despite the Company winning the case and two
subsequent appeals, the project was placed under significant financial strain. The delay caused
by the lawsuits held up both the historic tax credit syndication as well as the closing of
permanent lending with Community Preservation Corporation.

By the end of 2019, the project team had revived the project with a new HTC partner (Foss
Investments) and renewed a permanent loan interest by Key Bank and CPC. However, just as
construction and financing was accelerating this second time, the COVID-19 pandemic hit and
shut down the project for an additional 5 months. By October 2020, Key Bank and the HTC
partner had considerable project fatigue due to these unforeseen delays. The Company worked
to keep momentum and pledged an additional $1MM equity investment from the ownership
team and put together project fundamentals that the HTC investor could support.

At any given time between 2018 and early 2020, there were 3-10 full-time equivalent employees
(“FTES™) working on this project either through the payroll of 467 Richmond Avenue LLC,
ECOSTANDARD Consultants, Savarino Companies, and/or BRD Construction. However, the
financial and organizational strain on the Company and the lack of core reporting from the
Company's vendors left ECIDA with insufficient reports on the FTEs during project construction.
By the end of 2020, the project had completely paused. The final built project was to be
delivered in 2020. However, due to circumstances beyond the Company’s control as articulated

-13-



above, i.e. lawsuits and multiple appeals by external parties and a global pandemic which has
had wide-ranging and negative economic impacts around the world, the Company is far behind
in delivering the final Project, but remains optimistic and determined. In 2021, the Company had
to furlow staff and both Savarino and BRD had completely paused work on the project.

Unfortunately, post COVID-19 Key Bank has been unwilling to extend the existing $9MM
construction loan and put the project into forbearance pending refinance with a new lender.
Currently, the Company is seeking new construction and permanent lending with the additional
support of economic development and real estate development consultants. The Company's
project team has revised the project’s financial model to support the original scope as proposed
to ECIDA. The Company is engaged with potential tenants that would significantly bolster
refinancing and has secured the the help of the local foundations and their support for this
project, i.e, First Niagara Foundation, Oishei Foundation and Cullen Foundation. The Company
is also working in collaboration with Local Initiative Support Corporation (“LISC”),and Empire
State Development’s Better Buffalo Fund (“BBF”) where to-date the Company has secured
$1.5M interest-only loan from BBF. It is anticipated that the project's organizational
re-stabilization and refinance can be completed by Q4 2024/Q1 2025. The scope of the project
remains aligned with the scope that was initially approved by the ECIDA Board and Committee.

For additional project context, please know that | have been personally and financially
committed to this project since the purchase of the building and parcels in 2014. | have lived in
the neighborhood of the church (at Massachusetts and West Ferry) since 2009 but watched this
church sit vacant since 1999 and saw this project as an important anchor to the advancement of
livability for all residents but also as an important demonstration project for neighborhood level
micro-development.

Originally, my brother and | invested +/- $2MM to stabilize the former church buildings and
remediate environmental hazards from the building - using funds from the distribution of my late
mother’s estate, the accumulated wealth of a profitable manufacturing business started by my
grandfather of which she was a technical draftsman at a time when women didn’t really populate
those trades. We made the investment as a tribute to her.

Itis my sincere hope that the Committee will continue to see the value in this effort and
recognize the unwavering commitment that |, and my dedicated and skilled team, have for this
project's completion and the creation of the jobs and economic development outcomes that led
ECIDA to approve this project to begin with. We do not take lightly the opportunity to leverage
the tax abatement program as one of many critical pieces to the project's financial model and
one that the project critically relies upon for completion. It should be recognized that these
ECIDA programs are the very reason that smaller, community-based projects can succeed.
Despite the multiple challenges and adversity not uncommon to complicated historic
preservation and urban infill projects, we hope to stand as an important model to future projects
that rely upon the ECIDA programs as essential tools in the development toolbox for projects at
any scale.

-14-



In closing, | respectfully request that the ECIDA’s Policy Committee consider extending the
financial assistance for the reasons outlined above rather than modify, terminate, and/or
recapture such assistance.

Please note that | am willing to appear for a presentation to the Agency’s Policy Committee, if
appropriate to further explain the project and its status.

Your consideration in this matter and of this request is greatly appreciated. Please do not
hesitate to contact me with any further questions or for additional clarification.

Sincerely,

Rachel Hecki
Lead Partner and Owner
467 Richmond Avenue, LLC

-15-



467 Richmond Avenue, LL.C/Rosanna Elizabeth Visual & Performing Arts Campus (REVPAC)

$10,775,636

AMENDATORY INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION

ELicigiLITY

NAICS Section - 531110

COMPANY INCENTIVES

Approximately $345,625 in sales
tax savings.

Up to $50,000 in mortgage
recording tax exemption.

EMPLOYMENT

Current Employment - 3

The project is anticipated to create
1 additional job afier project
completion

ProJECT HISTORY

5/31/2017 - Public hearing held.
Transcript attached

6/28/2017 - Inducement Resolution
presented to Board of Directors
adopting a Negative Declaration in
accordance with SEQRA.

6/28/2017 - Lease/Leaseback
Inducement Resolution presented
to the Board of Directors

10/23/2018 - Public Hearing held.
No oral or written comments

11/28/2018 - Amendatory
Inducement Resolution presented
to the Board of Directors.

Project Title: 467 Richmond Avenue, LLC/Rosanna Elizabeth Visual &
Performing Arts Campus (REVPAC)
Project Address: 467 Richmond Avenue

Buffalo, New York 14222
(Buffalo City School District)

Amended Agency Request
Approval is being sought to modify the original project description to include the addition of
one 404 sq. ft. apartment unit which will serve as a live/work space for artists and will rent

for approximately $800/month. The company will also be applying to the City of Buffalo
for the 485-a real estate exemption. All other components of the project remain unchanged.

Agency Request

A sales tax and mortgage tax exemption in connection with the redevelopment and adaptive
reuse of the property.

Acquisition $ 192,026
Building Addition $ 300,000
Renovation $ 5,809,313
Equipment $ 1,246,400
Soft Costs $ 3,227,897

Total Project Cost $10,775,636

Company Description

467 Richmond Avenue, LLC was formed by Rachel Ann and Ryan Heck! for the purpose
of undertaking this project on behalf of the Rosanna Elizabeth Visual & Performing Arts
Campus (“REVPAC”) The organization was formed specifically to support community-
based projects that promote and support the arts and the social benefits derived form the
arts, community development and other related social justice causes. REVPAC is an or-
ganization that will benefit performing arts groups by providing rehearsal space and a ven-
ue for performances for various artists and touring groups.

Project Description

The proposed project consists of the renovation and adaptive reuse of the property located
at 467 Richmond Avenue which is the former Richmond Methodist Episcopal Church.
The church is a historical structure and was constructed in the late 1800°s. The facility
which consists of 36,000 sq. ft. will be a campus for the utilization by performing arts
groups and will incorporate and business meeting space, live/work space for artists and a
recording studio.

REVPAC currently has 3 employees that will be located at the facility and the plan is to
hire one additional employee.

In addition to the performing arts venue, the company plans to construct several market
rate apartments on an adjacent property which will serve to create a revenue stream to
cover the expenses of the campus. ECIDA sales tax and mortgage tax benefits will be
limited solely to the renovation of the church, and the corporate and business meeting
space. No benefits will be provided to the new housing component.

3/8/2019 11:03 AM

-16-




Retail Determination

Use Sq. Ft. Cost % of Project Cost
Illz;rformance/Event and
eeting Space 37,000 $6,109,313 100%

On June 28, 2017, the Board determined that the project was a retail project and it was located in a highly distressed area and in
compliance with Section 862 of the NY General Municipal Law, the chief executive officer of Erie County provided written
confirmation confirming the financial assistance.

Impact on Taxes

Current Yearly |Estimated In- | Additional County | Additional Additional
Taxes crease in Revenue over Local Reve- | Yearly Reve-
Assessed Value [485-a Abatement |nue over 485- | nue Upon
Period a Abatement |Expiration of
Period Abatement
Period
$12,200 $2,500,000 $193,000 $135,000 $83,000
Combined Tax
Rate: $33.00
Draft Recapture Material Terms
Condition Term Recapture Provision
Total Investment At Project Completion Investment amount equal to or greater than 85%
of project amount
Total project Amount = $10,775,636
85%: $9,159,290
Employment See Recapture Term Maintain Base: 3
Create 85% of Projected:
Projected = 1
85%=1
Recapture Employment: 4
Local Labor Construction Period Adherence to policy including
quarterly reporting
Unpaid Taxes See Recapture Term Adherence to policy
Pay Equity See Recapture Term Adherence to policy
Recapture Period 2 years after project State and Local Sales Taxes
completion Mortgage Recording Tax
Recapture

Pursuant to New York State General Municipal Law, the agency shall modify, recover, recapture or terminate any financial assistance
taken by the company that is in violation of the GML.

At project completion the company must certify i) total investment is equal to or greater than §5% of the anticipated project amount;

i) confirm company has maintained 3 positions and has created 1 additional position iii) adherence to ECIDA local labor policy
during construction and iv) adherence to unpaid tax and pay equity policies for the recapture term.

-17-



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

1o0f21

[ e v oL ChuNYY

REVPAC

I Section i: Applicant Background information

Applicant Information- Company Receiving Benefit

Project Name

Applicant Name
Applicant Address
Applicant Address 2

Applicant City
Applicant State
Applicant Zip

Phone

Fax

E-mali
Website
Federal ID#
NAICS Code

Will a Real Estate Holding
Company be utilized to own
the Project property/facility
What is the name of the Real
Estate Holdling Company

Federal ID}#

State and Year of
Incorporation/Organization
List of stockholders,
members, or partners of Real
Estate Holding Company

Yes

Rosanna Elizabeth Visual & Performing Arts Campus
(REVPAC)

467 Richmond Avenue, LLC.
345 West Ferry

Buffalo
New York
14213

716-289-6247

716-630-7077
bonnie_danni@hatmail.com
richmondferrychurch.org

53131

467 Richmond Avenue LLC

2,014

Rachel Heckl, Ryan Heck!

Individual Completing Application
Bonnie Danni

Name
Title
Address
Address 2
City
State

Financial Manager
345 West Ferry

Buffalo

New York

-18-

http://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/6’

5/16/17, 8:47 AN



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) http://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/67.

Zip 14213

Phone 716-285-6247

Fax 716-630-7077

E-Mail bonnie_danni@hotmail.com

20f21 5/16/11, 8:47 A\

-19-



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) http:/fererw.ecidany.com/app/itax-incentive-application-2014/print/67

30f21

Co Contact (if di from individual i lication
Name Rachel Heckl

Title Owner

Address 345 West Ferry

Address 2

City Buffalo

State New York

Zip 14213

Phone 716-913-2709

Fan 716-630-7077

E-Mall rachelanneheckl@gmail.com

Company Counsel

Name of Attorney Steven J. Weiss

Firm Name Cannon Heyman & Weiss LLP
Address 726 Exchange Street, Suite #500
Address 2

Clty Buffalo

State New York

Zip 14210

Phone 716-856-1700

Fax 716-856-2311

E-Mait sweiss@chwattys.com

Identify the assistance being reque f the Agen

Exemption from Sales Tax Yes
Exemption from Mortgage Yes
Tax

Exemption from Real No
Property Tax

Tax Exempt Financing* No

* {typically for not-for-profits & small qualified manufacturers)

Business Organization

Type of Business Limlted Liability Company

Type of Qwnership

Year Established 2013

State of Organlzation New York

List 0 members, or pa with % of ownership greater than 2

5/16/17, 8:47 Al

-20-



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) hitp:/fwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/67:

Please include name and % of ownership.
Rache] Anne Heckl 50% Ryan Heckl 50%

40of21 5/16/17, 8:47 AW.

-21-



The Erie County Industriel Development Agency (ECIDA) http/fwww,ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/6’

5of21

li ines: iption

Describe in detail company background, products, customers, goods and services. Description is erltical in determining
eligibility

467 Richmond Avenue LLC was created to own, develop and facilitate the adaptive re-use of the former Methodist Church at
Richmond and West Ferry and several adjacent vacant structures to form The Rosanna Elizabeth Visual & Performing Arts Campus
(REVPAC). REVPAC will be home to performing arts groups and individuals with the goal of providing resources towards the
self-sufficiency of performing artists and organizations.

Estimated % of sales within Erie County 100
Estimated % of sales outside Erle County but within New York State O
Estimated % of sales outside New York State but within the U.S. 0
Estimated % of sales outside the U.S.

(*Percentage to equal 100%)

What percentage of your total annual supplies, raw materials and vendor services are purchased from firms in Erie County?
include list of vendors, raw material suppliers and percentages for each. Provide supporting documentation of the estimated

percentage of local purchases

There Is no reason we can foresee why we would not be purchasing our annual supplies locally and utilizing vendors/suppliers
from within Erle County. A table will be uploaded that Isolates our projections for the next 10 years contained within our pro
forma profit and loss statement.

5/16/17, 8:47 AN

-22-



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) hitp://www, ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/67

L Section (I Eligibility Questionnalre - Project Description & Details

Project L ocation
Munidipality or Municipalities of current operations
n/a
Will the Proposed Project be located within 2 Municipality identified above?
No
In which Municlpality will the proposed project be located
Buffalo
Address
467 Richmond Avenue, Buffalo, NY 14222

WIll the completion of the Project result in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the project occupant from
one area of the state to another area of the state OR In the abandonment of one or more piants or facllities of the project
occupant located within the state?

No

if the Proposed Project is located In a different Municipality than that Munidpality in which current operations are being
undertaken, Is it expected that any of the facilities in any other Municipality will be closed or be subject to reduced activity?

No
(If yes, you will need to complete the Retail Section of this application)
SBL Number for Property upon which proposed Project will be located
100.29.6.1.1
What are the current real estate taxes on the proposed Project Site
$12,200 annually .
Assessed value of land
39,100
Assessed value of bullding(s)
148,600
Are Real Property Taxes current?
Yes

If no please explain

Town/City/Village of Project Site
Buffalo

School District of Project Site
Buffalo

Does the Applicant or any related entity currently hold fee title to the Project site?
Yes

If No, indicate name of present owner of the Project Site

Does Applicant or related entity have an option/contract to purchase the Project site?
No
Describe the present use of the Proposed Project site

6of 21 5/16/17, 8:47 Alv.

-23-



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) http:/ferww.ecidany.com/app/iax-incentive-application-2014/print/67

7of21

Currently, the previous church at Richmond and Ferry is vacant and has been for the better part of two decades. Before we
purchase the buiiding and land, it was owned by a non-profit also hoping to develop it into a cultural arts center. When they were
unable to accomplish all they hoped to with the funds they had been able to raise, the building and land were purchased by 467
Richmond Avenue, LLC,

Please provide narrative of the proposed project and the purpose of the proposed project {(new build, renovations, and/or
equipment purchases). Identify specific uses occurring within the project. Describe any and all tenants and any/all end users:
{This Information is critical In determining project ellgibility)

467 Richmond Avenue LLC will own, develop and facilitate the building of The Rosanna Elizabeth Visual & Performing Arts Campus
{REVPAC}. REVPAC will be home to performing arts groups and individuals with the goal of providing resources towards the
self-sufficiency of performing artists and organizations. By doing so, our 467 Richmond Ave LLC through REVPAC aims to increase
the productivity of these organizations (i.e. the generation of new works, performance pieces and installation pieces. Focusing on
the movement arts primarily, REVPAC has strategically created multiple revenue streams that will cover the expenses of the
Campus. By adding recording facilities, corporate and business meeting space, events and other revenue streams such as leases
for residential housing (which is not a part of this application scope), REVPAC has guaranteed its ability to cover costs and
permanent financing. The owner of 467 Richmond Avenue LLC. has identified a growing need In our City that has become
increasingly difficult to accommodate. Dancers and movement artists are challenged when it comes to space for rehearsal and
performances in the City of Buffaio and currently there are no performance spaces specifically taflored toward dance and
movement artists. The work entails renovations to the original building that include a new addition, high efficiency equipment and
a focus on green technology which will enhance this remarkabie space that will retain its historic character. in addition to our
incoming tenant list, additional tenants may utilize the building through StartUp NY for which the facility is designated and aligned
with Buffalo State College.The project benefits from Historic Tax Credit (HTC) investment, has been awarded a loan through the
Better Buffalo Fund/Buffalo Billion, and will utilize the City of Buffalo's 485-a tax deferment program.

If the Project could be undertaker without Financial Assistance provided by the Agercy, then provide a statement in the
space provided below indicating why the Project should be undertaken by the Agency:

without the assistance the ECIDA could provide, It will take longer to get to the point of construction. And, the facility will carry
more dollars into permanent financing than desired. The project requires ECIDA assistance to help defray the extensive cost of
renovation is to the structure which has been neglected for years and is currently on the Nationa! Registry of Historic Buildings,
requiring very specific building materials that meet State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) standards.

Describe the reasons why the Agency's Financial Assistance is necessary and how the Financial Assistance enables the
company to undertake the Project to facilitate investment, job creation and/or job retention. Focus on competitiveness
issues, project shortfalls, etc... Your eligibility determination will be based in part on your answer (attach additional pages if

necessary)

The project seeks to provide & facility that does not currently exist in Erie County, that allows for job creation and expansion of
business activities in art and music production, The location of the project will impact competitiveness, which is why the location
in the west side and the particular complex of buildings is important to establishing jobs and retalning jobs for incoming tenant
businesses hoping to stay in Erie County.

Please confirm by checking the box, below, if there Is likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for the
Financial Assistance provided by the Agency
Yes

if the Applicant is unable to obtain Financial Assistance for the Project, what will be the impact on the Applicant and Erie
County?

Significant investment has already been put into the project by ownership. The financial assistance ECIDA may provide allow us to
begin construction over the summer months and maximize on the time of year before the winter season begins. This will allow us

to achieve our anticipated opening date.
Will project include leasing any equipment?
No
if yes, please describe equipment and lease terms.

Site Characteristics
Will the Project meet zoning/land use requirements at the propased location?
Yes

5/16/17, 8:47 Al

-24-



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) hitp://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/67

Describe the present zoning/land use
Currently the facility located at 467 Richmond Avenue and the surrounding land is not being used and is awaiting construction to
begin. The facility was previcusly a church zone A2.
Describe required zoning/land use, if different
The facllity will be a multi-use facility located at 467 Richmond Avenue will be a visual and performing arts center part of a larger
campus. The facility has been rezoned A3,
if a change In 20ning/land use is required, please provide detalls/status of any request for change of zoning/land use
requirements
Is the proposed Project located on a site where the known or potential presence of contaminants is complicating the
development/use of the property?
No
if yes, please explain
Has a Phase ! Environmental Assessment been prepared, or will one be prepared with respect to the proposed Project Site?

Yes

if yes, please provide a copy.
Have any other studies, or assessments been undertaken with respect to the proposed Project Site that indicate the known
or suspected presence of contamination that would complicate the site's development?

Yes

If yes, please provide copies of the study.

If you are purchasing new machinery and equipment, does it provide demonstrable energy efficlency benefits?
Watts Architecture and Engineering have recommended and designed high efficiency equipment for the entire facility.
Documents, cut sheets and plans can be provided,

You may also attach additional information about the machinery and equipment at the end of the application.
Does or will the company or project occupant perform research and development activities an new products/services at the
project location?

No

if yes, please explain.
What percentage of annual operating expenses are attributed to the above referenced research and development activities?
nfa

Select Project Type for all end users at project site (you may check more than one)

Will customers personally visit the Project site for either of the following economic activities? If yes with respect to either economic
activity indicated below, complete the Retail Determination contained in Section IV of the Application.

Please check any and all end uses as identified below.
Retall Sales Yes Services Yes
For purposes of this question, the term "retail sales" means (i) sales by a registered vendor under Article 28 of the Tax Law of the

State of New York (the "Tax Law") primarily engaged in the retail sale of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 1101(b)
(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or (ii) sales of a service to customers who personally visit the Project.

No Manufacturing Yes Multl-Tenant Yes Mixed Use
Yes Acquisition of Existing Facility ves Commercial No Facility for the Aging
No Housing No Back Office No Civic Facility (not for profit)
No Equipment Purchase Yes Retall No Other
8 of 21 5/16/17, 8:47 AN

-25.



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

9of21

Project Information
Estimated costs in connection with project
Land and/or Building Acquisition
$192,026 36,000 square feet
New Building Construction
$0 square feet
New Building addition{s)
4 300,000 1,000 square feet
infrastructure Work
$0
Renovation
$5,809,313 36,000 square feet
Manufacturing Equipment
S0
Non-Manufacturing Equipment: (furniture, fixtures, etc.)
$ 1,246,400
Soft Costs: (professional services, etc.)
$1,240,031
Other Cost
$1,987,866
Explain Other Costs
Stabilization, pre-construction, and developer fee
Total Cost
$ 10,775,636
Project Refinancing; estimated amount (for refinancing of existing debt only)
$4,263,197

Have any of the above costs been pald or incurred as of the
date of this Application?

Yes

If Yes, describe particulars:

$1,294,928 of the Other Costs have been paid by the Owner and are reflected as Owners Equity in our Capital Stack.

Sources of Funds for Proje
Equity {excluding equity that Is attributed to grants/tax credits):
$1,294,928
Bank Financing:
$ 4,263,197
Tax Exempt Bond issuance {if applicable):
$0
Taxable Bond Issuance (f applicable}:
$0

-26-

1 acres

bttp://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/6”

5/16/17, 8:47 Ak



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) hitp:/fwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/6 7.

100f21

Public Sources (Include sum total of all state and federal grants and tax credits):
S0

Identify each state and federal grant/credit:

Total Sources of Funds for Project Costs:
$5,558,125

Has a financing preapproval letter or loan commitment letter been obtained?
No

M e Recording Tax Exemption Benefit:

Estimated Mortgage Amount (Sum total of all financing — construction and bridge).
*Amount of mortgage, if any, that would he subject to mortgage recording tax.

54,503,571

Lender Name, if Known
TBD

Estimated Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit (% of estimated mortgage amount stated above):
$49,035

Construction Cost Breakdown:

Total Cost of Construction
$9,200,923 {(sum of 2,3,4,5, and/or 7 in Question K, above)

Cost for materlals
$ 3,184,357
% sourced in Erie County
80%
% sourced In State
100% (including Erie County)

Gross amount of costs for goods and services that are subject to State and local sales and use tax- sald amount to benefit
from the Agency's sales and use tax exemption benefit

$ 3,950,000
Estimated State and local Sales and Use Tax Benefit (product of 8.75% multiplied by the figure, above):
$345,625

Real Property Tax Benefit:
Identify and describe if the Project will utilize a real property tax exemption benefit OTHER THAN the Agency’s PILOT benefit:

n/a

For proposed facility please include # of sa ft for each of the uses outlined below

Cost % of Total Cost
Manufacturlng/Processing 0 square feet $0 0
Warehouse 0 square feet 30 0
Research & Development 0 squarefeet S0 0
Commercial 34,000 square feet $5,742,754 94

5/16/17, 8:47 AM

-27-



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) http://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/6”

Retail 0 square feet 50 0
Office 2,000 square feet 366,558 6
Specify Other 0 square feet $0 0

If you are undertaking new construction or renovations, are you seeking LEED certification from the US Green Building
Council?

No
If you answered yes to question above, what level of LEED certification do you anticipate recelving? {Check applicable box}

<BLANK>
Provide estimate of additional construction cost as a result of LEED certification you are seeking

0
Will project result in significant utility infrastructure cost or uses

Yes

What is your project timetable {Provide dates)

Start date : acquisition of equipment or construction of facilities
7/1/2017

End date : Estimated completion date of project
12/30/2018

Project occupancy : estimated starting date of operations
1/1/2018

Have construction contracts been signed?

Yes
Have site plans been submitted to the appropriate planning department for approval?

Yes
Has the Project received site pian approval from the appropriate planning department?

Yes

Is project necessary to expand project employment?
Yes

Is project necessary to retain existing employment?

Yes

Employment Plan {Specific to the proposed proiect location):

Estimate number
IF FINANCIAL of residents of the
IF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IS iabor Market Area

c“:"‘::f ::"':: ASSISTANCEIS  GRANTED -project In which the
’l’ ”.on o': w’be GRANTED - project the number of FTE  Project Is located
the number of FTE  and PT jobs to be  that will fill the FTE

pr:mt:;an and PT jobs to be CREATED upon and PT jobs to be
RETAINED TWO years after  created upon TWO
Project completion Years after Project
Completion **
Full time 0 3 1 a

11 of 21 5/16/17, 8:47 AM

-28-



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) htip://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/67:

Part time 0 0 0 0
Total 0 3 b |
** The Labor Market Area includes the Counties of Erie, Niagara, Genesee, Cattaraugus,
Wyoming and Chautauqua. For the purposes of this question, please estimate the
number of FTE and PT jobs that will be filled, as indicated in the third column, by
residents of the Labor Market Area, in the fourth column.
#4*By statute, Agency staff must project the number of FTE jobs that would be retained
and created if the request for Financial Assistance is granted. Agency staff will project
such jobs over the TWO Year time period following Project completion. Agency staff
converts PT jobs into FTE jobs by dividing the number of PT jobs by two (2).

Salary and Fringe Benefits for Jobs to be Retained and Created;
Category of Jobs to be Retained and Created Average Salary Average Fringe Benefits

Management $ 55,000 $ 10,500
Professional $ 50,000 $ 10,500
Administrative $ 25,000 $8,013
Production $ 36,000 $5,113
independent Contractor $0 $0
Other $o $0

Employment at other locations in Erie County: (provide address and number of employees at each location):

Address
Full time 0 0 0
Part time 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0
12 of 21 5/16/17, 8:47 AM

-29.



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) http://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/67

Wil any of the facilities described above be closed or subject to reduced activity?
No

Payroll information
Annual Payroll at Proposed Project Site
$170,613

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be retained
547,000

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be created
$ 47,000

Estimated salary range of jobs to be created
From $ 36,000 To $ 55,000

Is the project reasonably necessary to prevent the project occupant from moving out of New York State?
No
I yes, please explaln and Identify out-of-state locations investigated

What competitive factors led you to Inquire about sites outside of New York State?

Have you contacted or been contacted by other Local, State and/or Federal Economic Development Agencles?

No
If yes, please indicate the Agency and nature of inquiry below

Do you anticipate applying for any other assistance for this project?

Yes
i yes, what type of assistance (Historic Tax Credits, 485(a), Grants, Utllity Loans, Energy Assistance, Workforce Training)

The project will recelve Historic Tax Credit (HTC) investment dollars, has been awared a $1.5M loan through the Better Buffalo
Fund and will utilize the City of Buffalo's 485(a) tax program. The project will likely qualify for National Grid Energy Assistance
programs as well.

13 of21 5/116/17, 8:47 A

-30-



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

14 0f 21

f-j Section llI: Facllity Type - Single or Multi Tenant

is this a Single Use Facility or a Multi-Tenant Facility?
Mult-Tenant Facllity

For Single Use Facility
Occupant Name
Address

Contact Person
Phone

Fax

E-Mail

Federal ID #
SIC/NAICS Code

Multi-Tepant Facllity

http://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/67.

Please explaln what market conditions support the construction of this multi-tenant facility
The need for visual and performing arts space impacts many artists in the area. Many are in need of reasonably priced space and
coltaboration opportunities which this campus will provide.

Have any tenant leases been entered into for this project?

- Yes

if yes, please fill out a tenant form in section VI, for each tenant.

Tenant Name

-31-

SIC or NAICS-also briefly describe type of

Current Address (clty, # of sq ft and % of total to be .
state, zip) occupled at new projet site :::lré:ss, products services, % of salesin

5/16/17, 8:47 AM



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) http://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/6”

| Section IV: Tenant Information

15 of 21 5/16/17, 8:47 A\

-32-



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) hitp:/www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/67.

| section V: Environmental Questionnaire

General Background Information

Address of Premises 467 Richmond Avenue Buffalo, New York 14222
Name and Address of Owner  Rachel Anne Heckl 540 Masschusetts Buffalo, New York 14213 Ryan Heckl 706 Pavement Road
of Premises Lancaster, New York 14086

Describe the general features of the Premises {include terrain, location of wetlands, coastlines, rivers, streams, lakes, etc.)

The REVPAC facility resides in the Richmond Ferry residential neighborhood within a few blocks of the Eimwood Village. The
former church lies on the Ferry Circle a restored portion of the historic Olmsted Parks and Parkways system. The Church is less
than a mile from the Grant Ferry business district.

Describe the Premises {including the age and date of construction of any improvements) and each of the operations or
processes carried out on or intended to be carried on at the Premises

The facllity was previously an Episcopal/Methodist church. As attendance dropped over the years, it was no longer sustainable as
a church. As a result, for many years it was vacant. Purchased by a non-profit group, renovations began to convert the facility into
an arts center. Funding was not available to complete the renovations and the current owner purchased the facility in 2014,

Describe all known former uses of the Premises

A church
Does any person, firm or corporation other than the owner occupy the Premises or any part of it?

No
If yes, please ldentify them and describe their use of the property
Have there been any spills, releases or unpermitted discharges of petroleum, hazardous substances, chemlcals or hazardous
wastes at or near the Premises?

No
If yes, describe and attach any incident reports and the results of any investigations
Has the Premises or any part of it ever been the subject of any enforcement action by any federal, state or local government
entity, or does the preparer of this questionnaire have knowledge of: a) any current federal, state or local enforcement actions;
b) any areas of non-compliance with any federal, state or lacal laws, ordinances, rules or regulations assoclated with operations
over the past 12 months?

No
If yes, please state the resuits of the enforcement action (consent order, penalties, no action, etc.) and describe the
circumstances

Has there been any filing of a notice of cltizen suit, or a civil complaint or other administrative or criminal procedure involving
the Premises?
No

if yes, describe in full detail

Solid And Hazardous Wastes And Hazardous Substances
Does any activity conducted or contemplated to be conducted at the premises generate, treat or dispose of any petrofeum,
petroleum-related products, solid and hazardous wastes or hazardous substances?

No
If yes, provide the Premises' applicable EPA {or State) Identification number
Have any federal, state or local permits been Issued to the Premises for the use, generation and/or storage of solid and

hazardous wastes?
No

H yes, please provide copies of the permits.
identify the transporter of any hazardous and/or solid wastes to or from the Premises

Identify the solid and hazardous waste disposal or treatment facifities which have received wastes from the Premises for the

16 of 21 5/16/17, 8:47 AM

-33-



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) http://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/67

17 of 21

past two (2) years
Does or Is it contemplated that there will occur at the Premises any accumulation or storage of any hazardous wastes on-site for
disposal for longer than 90 days?

No

If yes, please Identify the substance, the quantity and describe how it is stored

Discharge Into Waterbodies
Briefly describe any current or contemplated industrial process discharges (Including the approximate volume, source, type and
number of discharge points). Please provide copies of all permits for such discharges

N/A
Identify all sources of discharges of water, including discharges of waste water, process water, contact or noncontact cooling
water, and stormwater. Attach all permits relating to the same. Also identify any septic tanks on site

N/A
Is any waste discharged into or near surface water or groundwaters?
No

If yes, please describe In detail the discharge Including not only the receiving water's classification, but a description of the
type and quantity of the waste

Air Pollution
Are there or is it contemplated that there will be any air emission sources that emit contaminants from the Premises?

No

If yes, describe each such source, including whether it is a stationary combustion installation, process source, exhaust or
ventilation system, inclnerator or other source

Are any of the air emisslon sources permitted?

No
If yes, attach a copy of each permit.

Storage Tanks

List and describe all zbove and under ground storage tanks at the Premises used to store petroleum or gasoline preducts, or
other chemicals or wastes, including the contents and capacity of each tank. Please also provide coples of any
reglstrations/permits for the tanks

Have there been any leaks, spills, releases or other discharges (Including loss of inventory) associated with any of these tanks?
No

If yes, please provide all details regarding the event, including the response taken, all analytical results or reports developed
through investigation {whether Internal or extemal), and the agencies which were involved

Polychiorinated Biphenvis ("PCB" or "PCBs") And Asbestos

Provide any records in your passession or known to you to exist concerning any on-site PCBs or PCB equipment, whether
used or stored, and whether produced as a byproduct of the manufacturing process or otherwise.

Have there been any PCB splils, discharges or other accidents at the Premises?
No

if yes, relate all the circumstances

Do the Premises have any asbestos containing materlals?
No

If yes, please identify the materials

5/16/17, 8:47 AN

-34-



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) http://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/67.

18 of 21

[ Section VI: Inter-Municipal Move Determination

The Agency s required by state law to make a determination that, if completion of a Project benefiting from Agency Financial Assistance results in the removal of
an industrial or manufacturing plant of the project accupant from one area of the state to ancther area of the state or in the abandonment of one or more plants
or facilities of the project occupant located within the state, Agency financial AssistAnce is required to prevent the project occupant from relocating out of the
state, of Is reasonably necessary to preserve the project occupant’s competitive position In Its respective industry.

Will the project result In the removal of an Industrial or manufacturing plant of the Project occupant  No
from one area of the state to another area of the state?

Will the project result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Project No
occupant located within the state?

If Yes to either question, explain how, notwithstanding the aforementioned closing or activity reduction, the Agency's
Financial Assistance is required to prevent the Project from relocating out of the State, or Is reasonably necessary to preserve

the Project occupant's competitive position in its respective Industry:
Does this project involve relocation or consolidation of a project occupant from another municipality or abandonment of an
existing facility?
Within New York State No
Within Erle County No
If Yes to elther question, please, explain
Will the project result in a relocation of an existing business operation from the City of Buffalo?
No
If yes, please explain the factors which require the project occupant to relocate out of the City of Buffalo (For example,
present site is not large enough, or owner will not renew leases etc.)
What are some of the key requirements the project occupant is looking for in a new site? (For example, minimum sq. ft., 12 foot
cellings, truck loading docs etc.)

if the project occupant is currently located in Erle County and wilf be moving to a different municipality within Erle County, has
the project occupant attempted to find a sultable location within the municipality In which it is currently located?

<BLANK>
What factors have lead the project occupant to consider remaining or locating in Erie County?

If the current facility Is to be abandoned, what is going to happen to the current facllity that project occupant is located in?

Please provide a list of properties considered, and the reason they were not adequate. (Some examples include: site not large
enough, layout was not appropriate, did not have adeguate utility service, etc.) Please include full address for locations.

5/16/17, B:47 AM

-35-



The Erie County Indusirial Development Agency (ECIDA) http:/ferww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/67

| Section VIi: Adaptive Reuse Projects

Are you applying for tax incentives under the Adaptive Reuse Program? Yes
What is the age of the structure (In years)? 131

Has the structure been vacant or underutilized for 8 minimum of 3 years? (Underutilized is defined Yes
as a minimum of 50% of the rentable square footage of the structure being utilized for a use for
which the structure was not designed or intended)

If vacant, number of years vacant. 12

if underutilized, number of years underutiiized. 20

Describe the use of the building during the time it has been underutilized: The building has been
empty

Is the structure currentiy generating insignificant income? {Insignificant income is defined as No

Income that is 50% or less than the market rate income average for that property class)

if yes, please provide dollar amount of income belng generated, if any $

Does the site have historical significance? Yes

Are you applying for elther State/Federal Historical Tax Credit Programs? Yes

if yes, provide estimated value of tax credits $$3,000,000

Briefly summarize the financial obstacles to development that this project faces without ECIDA or other public assistance.
Please provide the ECIDA with documentation to support the financial obstacles to development (you will be asked to provide
cash flow projections documenting costs, expenses and revenues with and without IDA and other tax credits Included Indicating
‘below average return on investment rates compared to reglonal industry averages)
Because of the age of the building and its status on the National Registry of Historic Places, very specific construction methods
and materlals must be utilized that conform to state and federal historical standards, raising the cost of construction significantly.
The age and deterioration of the building as well as the remediation of toxic materials adds additional costs to the renovation
budget. Also, the project permanent financing will increase by the amount of the assistance that tax abatement could offer us.
Briefly summarize the demonstrated support that you intend to receive from lecal government entities. Please provide ECIDA
with documentation of this support In the form of signed letters from these entities
The project has been vocally supported by the district of Niagara Coucilmember during planning board and zoning board hearings.
The project is known to the City of Buffalo, Mayor's office, Empire State Development, Buffalo Urban Development Corporation
and other entities. The project has also received support letters from the community. These letters are attached.
Please indicate other factors that you would ilke ECIDA to consider such as: structure or site presents significant public safety
hazard and or environmental remediation costs, site or structure Is located In a distressed census tract, structure presents
signHficant costs assoclated with building code compliance, site has historical significance, site or structure Is presently
delinquent in property tax payments
This site has historical significance and is presently vacant sitting in the middle of the Richmond Ferry area.

19 of 21 5/16/17, 8:47 AN

-36-



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) hitp://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/67;

E Section Vili: Senior Citizen Rental Housing Projects

Are you applying for tax Incentives under the Senior Rental Housing policy?

No
Has the profect recelved written support from the city, town or village government in which It is located?
" No
Describe the location of the project as It relates to the project’s proximity to the town / village / city center or to a recognized
hamlet.
Is the project consistent with the applicable municipal master plan?
Yes
if yes, please provide a narrative identifying the master plan (by name) and describing how the project aligns with the plan
details
Does the project advance efforts to create » walkable neighborhoed and community in proximity to important focal amenities
and services?
No
if yes, please provide a narrative describing the walkable nature of the project Including access seniors would have to specific
neighborhood amenities.

Has a market study shown that there is a significant unmet need In the local community or specific neighborhood where seniors
are unable to find appropriate housing opportunities?
No
is the project located in an area (defined as a 1 — 5 mile radius of the project site} where there are significant local resident
populations that are at or below the median Income level?
Yes
If yes, please describe how you made this determination based upon census tract and other relevant third party data.
The Richmond Ferry area is a residential area in the ElImwood Village area. The former church we restoring sits on the circle of
Richmond and Ferry. Residents want to see the space be useful again In the this community as it has been vacant for the better
part of two decades.
Does the project provide amenities that are attractive to seniors and differentiates the project from standard market rate
housing?
No
If yes, please describe these amenitles (examples may include: community rooms, social / recreational activity areas, senlor-
oriented fixtures and safety amenities, securlty systems, call systems, on site medical services)
Are there impediments that hinder the ability to conventionally finance this project and /or negatively impact the project’s
return on investment?
No
If yes, please briefly summarize the financlal obstacles to development that this project faces without IDA or other public
assistance. Please provide the IDA with documentation to support the financlal obstacles to development (you will be asked to
provide cash flow projections documenting costs, expenses and revenues with and without IDA and other tax credits included
indicating below average return on investment rates compared to reglonal Industry averages)
Will the project target (and malntain during the incentive periad) a minimum 50% occupancy rate of senior citizens whose
income Is at or below 60-80% of the median income for Erle County?
No
If yes, please describe provide a narrative citing key facts that substantiate this finding.

20 0f 21 5/16/17, 8:47 AM

-37-



The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

21o0f21

[ Section IX: Retail Determination

Will any portion of the project (including that portion of the costs to be financed from equity or
other sources) consist of facllities or property that are or will be primarily used in making sales of
goods or services to customers who personally visit the project site?

if yes, complete the Retzil Questionnaire Supplement below.

What percentage of the cost of the project will be expended on such facilities or property primarily
used in making sales of goods or sarvices to customers who personally visit the project?

If the answer to this is less than 33% do not complete the remainder of the page and proceed to the next
section {Section V: Inter-Municipal Move Determination).

If the answer to A Is Yes AND the answer to Question B is greater than 33.33%, indicate which of the following questions below
appiy to the project:

WIll the project be operated by a not-for-profit corporation?

Is the project location or facility likely to attract a significant number of visitors from outside the
economic development region {Erle,Niagara, Allegheny, Chautaugua and Cattaraugus counties) in
which the project will be located?

If yes, please provide a third party market analysis or other documentation supporting your respense.

Is the predominant purpose of the project to make avallable goods or services which would not, but
for the project, be reasonably accessibie to the resldents of the municipality? Are services provided
at the proposed project site needed because of a lack of reasonably accessible retall trade facilities

offering such goods or services?

if yes, piease provide a market analysis supporting your response.

Will the project preserve permanent, private sector Jobs or Increase the overall number of
permanent private sector jobs in the State of New York?

if yes, explain

Is the project located in a Highly Distressed Area?

-38-

Yes

100 %

No
No

No

Yes

Yes

http://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2014/print/6’

5/16/17, 8:47 Ad



dnou uonednps Awapeay asueq g
pue uonanpoid Jjsnws ‘ueusopad & 1 Fa 3NUAAY POOMION S/t waoRdgz Y 'bsopo'z ASNIN PHOM Ojeyng
$323(d Soueunopad pajjuapms N
npoud (| ‘Saiouspisal pue sdoyspiom 7 T T 09ZYT AN ‘Ofeyng
‘SISSEJI LOMEINP SUE JUDWSAOLL SHV Y3 40} 121URD £OT wanadg Y bsgoo‘e Boue( JO (00Y2S I3y
sany|ne)

sJE Ul suoiejjeysul BuiB8) pozyjeoads Joy
FVULYSISSE [EDJUYID) pue sasald dusje

4o uoponpoud ‘sdoysysom uonesnps  z i T A MOJIY J8ALD) GG waaedy Ybsgos't 20UR(Q [el4oY DN
SIJAIDS UOPEINPR § [ 4 ALI24 159pA SHE wadeds  u-bsgop ojeyng eapiauny Joy yoea)
Fujnpoejnuew Aleuondaju6a
13 ANejoroy) ‘Avedwoadnues 7 1 1 AuBd 1S9M SYE [TAUERIET By 34 ‘bs 009 S3jejodoyd 3|qeL =njg
olpms dujpiooas € T 4 wasady 'y bsopo spiaday Jafuey auo
Auedwod s JUBWISAOW 7 T T BAN(] MOLIY 18240 §67 weasady Y -bsoosT dnoio aouewuopad )y MaN
TEUVISNG JO oanjeN $55Ac[dwg Swn ed SWIR [Ny $IBIPpV U WBSIIABTSIyyso0p Posed) og 03 SWeN YueuaL
imoL soahojdwy  sevhojduy Suippng Jo 24 °bs
o8 o 29e3ua0134 1BYM J0 Junowy

SINVNIL IN1D3dS08d VdATY

-39-



